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A Message from Congressman Robert Wexler (FL-19)
Dear Friends,

This economic crisis has hit Florida incredibly hard. Too many Floridians have lost their jobs,
their homes, their health benefits, and their life-savings in this dreadful economy. For the past
several months, employers in every industry have cut record numbers of jobs. Florida’s
economy is suffering an unemployment rate of 8.6%. The American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act is the first major step towards revitalizing our economy, creating new jobs,
and preventing more layoffs.

The price tag of this stimulus package is high, but without it Florida’s economy would sink even
lower. Implemented by the Obama Administration, Governor Charlie Crist, and local officials,
this legislation will put federal dollars to work in Florida in very tangible terms.

Our schools, which are suffering from severe budget deficits, will be able to keep more teachers
on staff and hire additional qualified educators. Small businesses will be able to take advantage
of a plethora of tax cuts, invest in new equipment, and create jobs in the private sector.
Hospitals and medical practices will be able to cut costs and hold onto more staff by embracing
new information technology incentives for the health care industry.

Ninety-five percent of working Americans will receive a tax cut that will help them juggle the
many expenses they face every day. Young people who wish to earn a college diploma will
benefit from increases to Pell Grant funding and the higher education tax credit. Florida will
also benefit greatly from the billions of dollars in matching grants for Medicaid funding, which
will reduce the strain on our state budget.

This legislation comes at a critical juncture. Constituents have called my office, desperate for
assistance in renegotiating their mortgages and avoiding foreclosures. More must be done to
keep people in their homes, stabilize the financial markets, make health care affordable and
accessible, and ensure that the education received by our children will prepare them to
compete in a global economy. Passage of this bill was an important step towards confronting
our economic challenges — yet Congress and the President still have plenty of work to do in the
coming months.

This guide aims to help the South Florida community navigate the economic stimulus package. |
hope it proves to be a valuable resource, and welcome you to call my office at 561-988-6302 if
you have a question.

I am committed to fighting to make our economy work for Florida families once again.

With warm regards,

Kook bonl-

Robert Wexler



American Recovery and Reinvestment:

Transparency and Accountability

In enacting this legislation, Congress and President Barack Obama made an unprecedented
commitment to accountability and transparency. The economic recovery plan totaled billions of
dollars, and taxpayers can track how these dollars are being spent on http://www.recovery.gov

Announcements from the federal agencies on the allocation of recovery money are available on
this website. You can review a breakdown of the stimulus bill and learn about the federal

government’s latest investments in our economy.

The federal agencies have also launched websites with specific information on the recovery

funding allocations under their jurisdiction:

Agency for International Development (USAID)
Corporation for National and Community Service (CNCS)
Department of Agriculture (USDA)

Department of Commerce (DOC)

Department of Defense (DOD)

Department of Education (ED)

Department of Energy (DOE)

Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
Department of Homeland Security (DHS)

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Department of Justice (DOJ)

Department of Labor (DOL)

Department of State (DOS)

Department of the Interior (DOI)

Department of Transportation (DOT)

Department of Treasury (TREAS)

http://www.usaid.gov/recovery/

http://www.nationalservice.gov/recovery

http://www.usda.gov/recovery

http://www.commerce.gov/Recovery/

http://www.defenselink.mil/recovery

http://www.ed.gov/recovery

http://www.energy.gov/recovery

http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/

http://www.dhs.gov/recovery

http://www.hud.gov/recovery/

http://www.usdoj.gov/recovery/

http://www.dol.gov/recovery/

http://www.state.gov/recovery/

http://www.doi.gov/recovery/

http://www.dot.gov/recovery/

http://www.treas.gov/recovery/




Department of Veterans Affairs (VA)

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

General Services Administration (GSA)

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)
National Endowment for the Arts (NEA)

National Science Foundation (NSF)

Small Business Administration (SBA)

Smithsonian Institution (SI)

Social Security Administration (SSA)

http://www.va.gov/recovery/

http://www.epa.gov/recovery/

http://www.gsa.gov/recovery/

http://www.nasa.gov/recovery/

http://www.nea.gov/recovery

http://www.nsf.gov/recovery/

http://www.sba.gov/recovery/

http://www.si.edu/recovery/

http://ssa.gov/recovery/




American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA):
Tax Provisions for Working Americans, Seniors, and Families

Making Work Pay Tax Credit:

* The stimulus package provides a tax cut to individuals making up to $100,000 and
families making up to $190,000, approximately 95 percent of American families who
work and receive a paycheck.

* For individuals who receive a paycheck and are subject to withholding, the credit will
typically be handled by their employers through automated withholding changes in
early spring. These changes may result in an increase in take-home pay.

* The amount of the credit must be reported on the employee's 2009 income tax return
filed in 2010. Taxpayers who do not have taxes withheld by an employer during the year
can also claim the credit on their 2009 tax return.

Economic Recovery Payments

Recipients of Social Security, SSI, Railroad Retirement, and Veterans Disability Compensation
benefits will receive a one-time payment of $250. The one-time payment is reduced from any
allowable Making Work Pay tax credit.

Help for Seniors

* Temporary increase to Social Security payments
* Increased funding from the federal government for home delivered meals
* Higher loan limits on reverse mortgages

Refundable Credit for certain Federal and State Government Retirees

The ARRA provides a one-time refundable tax credit of $250 to certain government retirees
who are not eligible for Social Security benefits. The one-time credit is reduced from any
allowable Making Work Pay credit.

Earned Income Tax Credit

The ARRA provides a temporary increase in Earned Income Tax Credit for working families with
three or more children.

Alternative Minimum Tax

The ARRA provides a one-year patch for the 2009 tax year and increases the exemption
amounts to $46,700 for individuals and $70,950 for joint filers.

Refundable First-time Home Buyer Credit

The ARRA forgives the repayment requirement for the tax credit available for first-time home
purchases made between January 1, 2009 and August 1, 2009 and boosts the credit from



$7,500 to $8,000. The credit phases out for taxpayers with incomes over $75,000 ($150,000
joint). Repayment is still required if home is sold within three years.

Temporary Suspension of Tax on Unemployment Benefits
The ARRA suspends federal income tax on first $2,400 in unemployment benefits.
Tax Deduction for Vehicle Purchases

The ARRA provides all taxpayers with a deduction for state and local sales and excise taxes paid
on the purchase of new cars, light trucks, recreational vehicles, and motorcycles through 2009.
The deduction is phased out for taxpayers with incomes over $125,000 ($250,000 for joint
returns).

Child Tax Credit

* For tax year 2009, families below certain income levels are allowed a credit against their
federal income tax of $1,000 for each qualifying child.

* To qualify for the credit, the child must be an individual for whom the taxpayer can
claim a dependency exemption. That means the child must be the son, daughter,
grandson, granddaughter, stepson, stepdaughter, or an eligible foster child of the
taxpayer. The child must be under the age of 17 at the close of the calendar year in
which the taxable year of the taxpayer begins.

* The child tax credit may be refundable under certain conditions, which are different for
families with different numbers of children. In 2009, families with one or two qualifying
children may receive a refund of up to 15% of the taxpayer’s earned income in excess of
$3,000. For example, a household with income of $15,000 would be eligible for up to a
$1,800 refundable tax credit. The $3,000 threshold (floor) is for 2009 and 2010 only.

Families with three or more children may qualify for a more generous refund of the credit. For
them, the refundable credit amount is capped by the larger of the two amounts:

(1) The excess of taxpayer’s Social Security taxes over the earned income tax credit
(2) The amount by which 15% of their earned income exceeds $12,550 in 2009

* The child tax credit is phased out for taxpayers whose adjusted gross incomes (AGls)
exceed certain thresholds.

* For married taxpayers filing joint returns, the phase-out range begins at a modified AGI
of $110,000

* For married couples filing separately at $55,000

* Forsingle or head of household filers the phase-out begins at an AGI of $75,000

* These phase-out thresholds are not indexed for inflation. AGI used in this calculation is
“modified” from AGI reported on the tax return by adding back certain items.

* The child tax credit is phased out by S50 for each $1,000 (or fraction thereof) by which
the taxpayer’s AGI exceeds the threshold amounts. The upper end of the phase-out
range depends on the number of qualified children and the amount of the credit
authorized by law in a given year.



Higher Education Tax Credits

Hope Credit

The Hope Credit allows parents paying to put children through college to claim tax credits on
gualified expenses for higher education, including tuition, room and board, and textbooks.

The ARRA modifies the Hope Credit for 2009 and 2010, increasing the credit amount
that can be claimed by taxpayers, allowing 40% of the credit to be refundable, and
expanding the definition of qualified tuition and related expenses to include required
course materials. In addition, availability of the Hope credit is expanded to include the
first four years of college and the income eligibility thresholds have been increased,
allowing more middle-income households to claim the credit. Lastly, taxpayers may
claim the credit against their alternative minimum tax liability.

Specifically, the amount of credit was increased to a maximum of $2,500 per student
(100% of taxpayers’ first $2,000 in qualified tuition and related expenses plus 25% of the
next $2,000 in qualified tuition and related expenses).

To qualify for the maximum amount of the Hope credit, a minimum of $4,000 in tuition
and fees per eligible student must be expended, assuming the taxpayer has sufficient
tax liability to take advantage of the credit’s partial Refundability. The maximum credit a
taxpayer may claim for a taxable year is $2,500 multiplied by the number of students in
the family who meet the enroliment criteria.

Refundability of the Hope credit is limited to 40% of the credit amount. The maximum
refund amount is $1,000 (40%x52,500). Refundable tax credits are more valuable to
lower income households who would otherwise not benefit from the tax credit.

In addition, taxpayers may claim the Hope credit against their alternative minimum tax
liability. These added provisions increase the amount of taxpayers able to benefit from
the credit.

ARRA also temporarily expanded the eligibility requirements of the Hope tax credit in two ways:

First, ARRA increased the income limits above which the credit is gradually reduced from
$48,000 (596,000 for married taxpayers filing jointly) to $80,000 ($160,000 for married
taxpayers filing jointly). Households with modified adjusted gross income above $90,000
(5180,000 for married taxpayers filing jointly) are ineligible for the credit. As a result, the
Hope credit now provides more assistance to middle and upper-middle taxpayers.
Second, the credit is available for the first four years of college. Expanding eligibility to
the later years of college may assist some households that have students closer to
graduation and that have been impacted by the recent economic downturn.

This temporary expansion applies to tax years 2008 and 2009. President Obama
proposed, in his FY2010 Budget, to make the ARRA changes permanent.

Lifetime Learning Credit

The ARRA also expanded qualification for The Lifetime Learning credit, which may be claimed
for the qualified tuition and related expenses of the students in the taxpayer’s family who are
enrolled at eligible institutions. The credit amount is equal to 20% of the taxpayer’s first
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$10,000 of out-of-pocket qualified tuition and related expenses. The maximum credit a
taxpayer may claim is $2,000.

* |f a taxpayer is claiming a Hope credit for a particular student, none of that student’s
expenses may be applied to the Lifetime Learning credit. As with the Hope credit, the
Tax Extenders and Alternative Minimum Relief Act of 2008 temporarily expands the
Lifetime Learning credit.

* Students who are attending undergraduate or graduate institutions in the Midwestern
disaster area may claim up to 40% of the taxpayer’s first $10,000 of out-of-pocket
qualified education expenses for a maximum credit of $4,000. In addition, qualified
tuition and related expenses will include room, board, books, and fees. This temporary
expansion applies to tax years 2008 and 2009. The amount a taxpayer may claim as a
Lifetime Learning credit is gradually reduced for taxpayers in the same manner as the
Hope credit.

Comparing the Two Higher Education Tax Credits

* Taxpayers can claim more than one Hope credit on a tax return, provided that more
than one individual (the taxpayer, the spouse, or a dependent) meets the qualifications.
In contrast, the Lifetime Learning credit may be claimed only once on a tax return for a
maximum of $2,000.

* The Lifetime Learning credit can include all of the qualifying educational expenses
pooled together from the taxpayer, the spouse and/or their dependent(s). For 2009 and
2010 the Hope credit is partially refundable, which means that a taxpayer may receive a
tax refund if the amount of their allowable education credit exceeds their income tax
liability. In addition, the Hope credit is indexed for inflation, while the Lifetime Learning
credit is not.

* Unlike the Hope credit, the Lifetime Learning credit can be used for graduate or
undergraduate studies. The Lifetime Learning credit does not require the student to be
in the first four years of undergraduate schooling (as does the Hope credit for 2009 and
2010 only). It only requires the student to be enrolled in one course at an eligible
educational institution. The Hope credit requires that the student not have a felony drug
conviction, which is not a requirement of the Lifetime Learning credit.

* Both credits disallow a double tax benefit for higher education expense. Some taxpayers
can deduct the expenses of higher education from their income tax by claiming an
above-the-line tuition and fees deduction or by claiming the expenses as business
related. In doing so, the taxpayer cannot also claim an education credit for those same
expenses.

* Taxpayers cannot claim an education credit on expenses paid with tax-free scholarship,
grant, or employer-provided educational assistance. Pell Grants, veterans’ educational
assistance, and tax-exempt scholarships are included in this category of tax-free
educational assistance. Taxpayers must reduce qualified education expenses by the
amount of any tax-free financial assistance before using the expenses to claim an
education tax credit.



The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA):
Energy and Efficiency Tax Provisions

Renewable Energy Production Tax Credits (PTC)

* The ARRA extends for three years the production tax credit (PTC) for electricity derived
from wind (through 2012) and for electricity derived from biomass, geothermal,
hydropower, landfill gas, and waste-to-energy facilities (through 2013).

* The law also provides grants of up to 30 percent of the cost of building a new renewable
energy facility in 2009 and 2010 or permits that business to claim a 30 percent
investment credit instead of a production tax credit.

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds

The ARRA authorizes an additional $1.6 billion of new bonds to finance facilities that generate
electricity for qualified renewable sources.

Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds

The ARRA authorizes an increase to $3.2 billion for qualified bonds to finance state, municipal,
and tribal government programs that reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Energy Efficient Home Tax Credits

* The ARRA promotes energy efficient investments in homes by extending and expanding
tax credits through 2010 for investments such as new furnaces, energy-efficient
windows and doors, or insulation.

* The law increases the credit from 10 percent to 30 percent of the cost of the investment
and raises the credit cap from $500 to $1,500, saving American families money on their
energy bills.

Plug-In Hybrid Tax Credit

The ARRA spurs the next generation of cars by providing a tax credit for families that purchase
plug-in hybrid and all-electric vehicles of up to $7,500.

New Manufacturing Investment Tax Credit

The ARRA establishes a new manufacturing investment tax credit for advanced energy facilities,
such as facilities that manufacture components for the production of renewable energy,
advanced battery technology, and other innovative next-generation green technologies.

Alternative Fuel Pumps

The ARRA Increases incentives to install pumps that dispense alternative fuels including E85,
bio-diesel, hydrogen, and natural gas.



The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA):

Tax Provisions for Businesses and Investors
Bonus Depreciation

The ARRA provides an extension of the provision allowing businesses to recover the costs of
capital expenditures faster than normal depreciation for purchases incurred in 2009.

Increase in Limits for Small Business Expensing

The ARRA allows small businesses to fully write-off certain capital expenses in the year they are
made, rather than depreciating them over time.

Defer Taxes on “Cancellation of Debt” Income

The ARRA allows certain businesses to recognize “Cancellation of Debt” income over 10 years,
deferring the tax for the first five years, and recognizing the income ratably over the following
five years.

Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC)

The ARRA provides a tax credit equal to 40 percent of the first $6,000 of wages paid to
employees of one of nine targeted groups. These targeted groups are

* Qualified TANF Recipients

* (Qualified Veterans

* Qualified Ex-Felons

* Qualified Designated Community Residents (DCR)

* (Qualified Vocational Rehabilitation Referrals

* (Qualified Summer Youth

* Qualified Food Stamp Recipients

* Qualified Supplemental Security Income (SSI) Recipients

Qualified Long-Term Family Assistance Recipients

Unemployed veterans and youth who have been out of work for 6 months are now also eligible
for this tax credit.

Markets Tax Credits (NMTC)

The ARRA provides a non-refundable tax credit intended to encourage private capital
investment in eligible, impoverished, low-income communities.

* The tax credit value is 39% of the cost of the qualified equity investment and is claimed
over a seven-year credit allowance period. In each of the first three years of the
investment, the investor receives a credit equal to 5% of the total amount paid for the
stock or capital interest at the time of purchase. For the final four years, the value of the
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credit is 6% annually. Investors must retain their interest in a qualified equity
investment throughout the seven-year period.
Only eligible investments in qualifying low-income communities are eligible for the
NMTC. Qualifying low-income communities include census tracts that have at least one
of the following criteria:
1. A poverty rate of at least 20%
2. lIslocated in a metropolitan area, a median family income below 80% of the
greater of the statewide or metropolitan area median family income; or
3. Islocated outside a metropolitan area, a median family income below 80% of the
median statewide family income. As defined by the criterion above, about 39%
of the nation’s census tracts covering nearly 36% of the U.S. population are
eligible for the NMTC. Additionally, designated targeted populations may be
treated as low-income communities.
All taxable investors are eligible to receive the NMTC. Once the investor begins claiming
the NMTC, the credit can be recaptured if the Community Development Entity (CDE)
1. Ceasesto be a CDE
2. Fails to use substantially all of the proceeds for eligible purposes
3. Redeems the investment principal
Almost all qualified equity investments (QEI) in low-income communities or serving low-
income populations could be eligible to receive the NMTC.
These eligible investments are referred to as qualified low-income community
investments (QLICls). QLICls are categorized in four ways:
1. Loans or investments to qualified active low-income community businesses
(QALICB)
2. The provision of financial counseling
3. Loans orinvestments in other CDEs
4. The purchase of loans from other CDEs
To receive an allocation, a CDE must submit an application to the CDFI, which asks a
series of standardized questions about the track record of the CDE, the amount of NMTC
allocation authority being requested, and the CDE’s plans for any allocation authority
granted. The application covers four areas:
The CDE’s business strategy to invest in low-income communities
Capitalization strategy to raise equity from investors
Management capacity
Expected impact on jobs and economic growth in low-income communities where
investments are to be made
In addition, priority points are available for addressing the statutory priorities of
investing in unrelated entities and having demonstrated a track record of serving
disadvantaged businesses or communities.
The application is reviewed and scored to identify those applicants most likely to have
the greatest community development impact and ranked in descending order of
aggregate score. Tax credit allocations are then awarded based upon the aggregate
ranking, until all of the allocation authority is exhausted. In each of the four completed
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NMTC rounds, significantly more CDEs applied for allocations than were able to receive
allocations, with only 22% of applicants receiving allocations.

Extension of Carryback Period for Net Operating Losses

The ARRA provides small business taxpayers with an opportunity to extend the carryback
period for up to five years for NOLs incurred in 2008.

To qualify as an eligible small business, a taxpayer must have $15,000,000 or less in gross
receipts.

The intent of the NOL carryback/carryforward provision is to give taxpayers the ability to
smooth out changes in business income, and therefore taxes, over the business cycle. Extending
the carryback period enhances the ability of firms to smooth income by allowing losses to be
offset against a longer period of past profits rather than having them carried forward.

In general, a taxpayer with an NOL can carry it back to the 2 taxable years preceding the NOL
year, and/or carry it forward to each of the 20 taxable years following the NOL year. The ARRA
provides small business taxpayers with an opportunity to extend the carryback period for up to
five years for NOLs incurred in 2008.

An NOL may not be used to offset more than 90% of a taxpayer’s alternative minimum taxable
income (AMTI) in any one year.

Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)

* The ARRA directs the Secretary of the Treasury to make grants to states in lieu of a
portion of their 2009 LIHTC credit volume limit.

* The change allows a state to elect to receive as grants up to 85% of 10 times the sum of
the state’s unused and returned credit allocation from 2008, 40% of their 2009 LIHTC
credit allocation, and 40% of any allocation in 2009 made to the state from the national
LIHTC pool.

* The allocation process begins at the federal level with each state receiving an annual
LIHTC allocation in accordance with federal law. State housing agencies than allocate
credits to developers of rental housing according to federally required, but state
created, allocation plans. The process typically ends with developers exchanging
allocated credits for equity with outside investors.

* Federal Allocation to States - LIHTCs are first allocated to each state according to its
population and are typically administered by each state’s Housing Finance Agency (HFA).
For example, HFAs originally received annual tax credits equal to $2 per person in 2008,
with a minimum small population state allocation of $2,325,000.

* For 2009, the per capita state allocation is $2.30, and the minimum small state
allocation is $2,665,000. The state allocation limits do not apply in the case of
development projects that are financed with tax-exempt bond proceeds.

* Tax credits that are not allocated by states are added to a national pool and then
redistributed to those states that apply for the excess credits. To be eligible for an
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excess credit allocation, a state must have allocated its entire previous allotment of tax
credits.

State Allocation to Developers - State Housing Finance Agencies (HFAs) allocate credits
to developers of rental housing according to federally required, but state created,
Qualified Allocation Plans (QAPs).

o Federal law requires that the QAP give priority to projects that serve the lowest
income households and that remain affordable for the longest period of time.

o Many states have two allocation periods per year. Developers apply for the
credits by proposing plans to state agencies. On average, one project out of five
may receive an allocation of tax credits. Developers of housing projects compete
for tax credits as part of the financing for the real estate development by
submitting proposals to the HFA.

o Types of developers include nonprofit organizations, for-profit organizations,
joint ventures, partnerships, limited partnerships, trusts, corporations, and
limited liability corporations.

o Inorder to be eligible for the LIHTC, properties are required to meet certain tests
that restrict both the amount of rent that is assessed to tenants and the income
of eligible tenants. The “income test” for a qualified low-income housing project
requires that the project owner irrevocably elect one of two income level tests,
either a 20-50 test or a 40-60 test.

In order to satisfy the first test, at least 20% of the units must be occupied by individuals
with income of 50% or less of the area’s median gross income, adjusted for family size.
To satisfy the second test, at least 40% of the units must be occupied by individuals with
income of 60% or less of the area’s median gross income, adjusted for family size.

A qualified low-income housing project must also meet the “gross rents test” by
ensuring rents do not exceed 30% of the elected 50% or 60% of area median gross
income, depending on which income test the project elected.

o The types of projects eligible for the LIHTC are apartment buildings, single-family
dwellings, duplexes, or townhouses. Projects may include more than one
building.

o Tax credit project types also vary by the type of tenants served. Housing can be
for families and/or special needs populations including the elderly. Enhanced
LIHTCs are available for difficult development areas (DDAs) and qualified census
tracts (QCTs) as an incentive to developers to invest in more distressed areas:
areas where the need is greatest for affordable housing, but which can be the
most difficult to develop. In these distressed areas, the LIHTC can be claimed for
130% (instead of the normal 100%) of the project’s total cost excluding land
costs. This also means that available credits can be increased by up to 30%.

Developers and Investors - Upon receipt of a LIHTC allocation, developers typically
exchange the tax credits for equity. For-profit developers can either retain tax credits as
financing for projects or sell them; non-profit developers sell tax credits.

-Taxpayers claiming the tax credits are usually real estate investors, not developers. The
tax credits cannot be claimed until the real estate development is complete and
operable. This means that more than a year or two could pass between the time of the
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tax credit allocation and the time the credit is claimed. If, for example, a project were
completed in June of 2008, depending on the filing period of the investor, the tax credits
may not begin to be claimed until sometime in 2009.

A trading tax credit, or selling them, refers to the process of exchanging tax credits for
equity investment in real estate projects. Developers recruit investors to provide equity
to fund development projects and offer the tax credits to those investors in exchange
for their commitment. When credits are sold, the sale is usually structured with a
limited partnership between the developer and the investor, and sometimes
administered by syndicators who must adhere to the complex provisions of the tax
code.

As the general partner, the developer has a very small ownership percentage but
maintains the authority to build and run the project on a day-today basis.

The investor, as a limited partner, has a large ownership percentage with an otherwise
passive role.

o Typically, the investor does not expect the project to produce income. Instead,
investors look to the credits, which will be used to offset their income tax
liabilities, as their return on investment. The investor can also receive tax
benefits related to any tax losses generated through the project’s operating
costs, interest on its debt, and deductions such as depreciation and
amortization.

o The type of tax credit investor has changed over the life of the LIHTC. Upon the
introduction of the LIHTC in 1986, public partnerships were the primary source
of equity investment in tax credit projects, but diminished profit margins have
driven some syndicators out of the retail investment market. Although there are
individual tax credit investors, in recent years, the vast majority of investors have
come from corporations, either investing directly or through private
partnerships.

o Neither individuals nor corporations can claim the LIHTC against the alternative
minimum tax.

o Different types of investors have different motivations for investing in tax
credits. An estimated 43% of investors are subject to the Community
Reinvestment Act (CRA), and investment in LIHTCs is favorably considered under
the investment test component of the CRA. Other investors include real estate,
insurance, utility, and manufacturing firms, many of which list the rate of return
on investment as their primary purpose for investing in tax credits. Tax sheltering
is the second-most highly ranked purpose for investing. The LIHTC finances part
of the total cost of many projects rather than the full cost and, as a result, must
be combined with other resources. The financial resources that may be used in
conjunction with the LIHTC include conventional mortgage loans provided by
private lenders and alternative financing and grants from public or private
sources. Individual states provide financing as well, some of which may be in the
form of state tax credits modeled after the federal provision.

o Additionally, some LIHTC projects may have tenants who receive other
government subsidies such as housing vouchers.
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Help for Homeowners Facing Foreclosure

An estimated 20 percent of home loans in Florida are past due or on the verge of defaulting.
Congressman Wexler believes that helping families stay in their homes is crucial to our nation’s
economic recovery. Helping families avoid foreclosure will also help stabilize the real estate
market and protect home values in South Florida.

If you are a South Florida homeowner facing foreclosure, there are resources available to you at
no charge that may be of assistance. With foreclosure scams exploding across the country, the
best option is to seek assistance from a Department of Housing and Urban Development
approved center:

Palm Beach County: Palm Beach County’s Foreclosure Assistance Center offers free assistance
to all families in Palm Beach County.

* Call 561-822-1583 for information on how to get help.
* You can visit the Foreclosure Assistance Center online at
www.wpb.org/housing/foreclosure.php

Broward County: Broward County also offers a Foreclosure Prevention Program, administered
by the Broward County Housing Authority.

* Call 877-483-1515 and follow the prompts to receive help
* Visit the Foreclosure Prevention Program online at
http://www.broward.org/housing/foreclsoure prevention.html

Congressman Wexler Supports President’s Plan to Help Homeowners

Congressman Wexler is supportive of President Barack Obama’s recently announced plan to
help millions of homeowners refinance or modify their mortgages to avoid foreclosure.

Read the President’s foreclosure plan and find out if you are eligible for assistance at
http://www.financialstability.gov

Congressman Wexler Votes for Helping Families Save Their Homes Act of 2009

Congressman Wexler supports this legislation because it will enable bankruptcy judges to
modify the terms of mortgages, which could reduce foreclosures by up to 20 percent. Investors,
real estate speculators, corporations, and family farmers already have this ability. Many lenders
are unresponsive to homeowners’ pleas for a reduction in monthly payments or other
modifications. This legislation includes new incentives for lenders to help homeowners
renegotiate the terms of their mortgages, and protects lenders that help struggling families
from lawsuits filed by investors. This legislation compliments the plan recently announced by
President Obama, which could help up to 9 million families restructure their loans during these
difficult economic times.
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The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Stimulus Funding and Grants: How it Works

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act will provide funding to a wide range of projects
in transportation and infrastructure, health and human services, environmental protection,
renewable energy and efficiency, economic development, and more. Grants will serve as a key
mechanism by which the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act will allocate funds and
support the rebuilding of our economy. Grants that are normally provided by the US
Government, as well as grants created by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, are
available at http://www.grants.gov.

To determine eligibility for a specific grant program, please visit the program link or visit the
appropriate federal agency. Information about the types of grants and how to apply is available
in this guide.

Some grant programs will be directly allocated to specific entities, like states, local
governments, existing programs, school districts, and the funding is determined by a preset
formula used by the federal government.

Other grants will be available through a competitive process. If your organization or business is
eligible to apply for a stimulus grant, you can apply with a grant proposal and submit it to the
appropriate federal or state contact. Grant applications are evaluated by the relevant agency to
determine which requests receive funds.

The most important part of the application process is developing a strong grant proposal. The
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance’s outline on how to write a grant proposal is available
for download at http://wexler.house.gov/pdfs/cfda grants.pdf
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The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Definition of Shovel Ready Projects

The project has completed all necessary design work and right-of-way acquisition.

The project has completed all environmental reviews. If the project would result in
significant environmental effects, the Federal agency must have issued an
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Record of Decision determining that the project
complies with environmental laws. As part of this environmental review process, project
sponsors must have had public hearings to consider the transportation, environmental,
community, and other effects of proposed projects. As part of the EIS Record of
Decision, project sponsors must also have environmental mitigation plans ready to
incorporate into the project design.

The project is on the State plan (“State Transportation Improvement Program”) and, if
applicable, Metropolitan plan (“Transportation Improvement Program”).

The project is ready to be put out to bid, and contracts can be awarded and work
underway within 90 days of enactment.

The recovery package is being implemented on a very aggressive timeline in order to have an
immediate effect on the economy and create jobs as soon as possible. Thus, it is expected that
much funding will be allocated to repair and maintenance activities rather than new
construction projects.

Local Entities and States can use infrastructure money to fund projects that meet shovel ready
requirements, including:

Passenger and freight rail transportation

Port infrastructure projects

Construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, restoration, and operational improvements
for highways (including Interstate highways) and bridges (including public bridges)
Transit projects including vehicles and facilities

Carpool projects, fringe and corridor parking facilities and programs, bicycle
transportation and pedestrian walkways

Modification of public sidewalks to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990

Highway and transit safety infrastructure improvements and programs, hazard
eliminations, projects to mitigate hazards caused by wildlife, and railway, highway grade
crossings

Capital and operating costs for traffic monitoring, management, and control facilities
and programs

Surface transportation planning programs

Infrastructure-based intelligent transportation systems capital improvements
Environmental restoration and pollution abatement projects to address water pollution
or environmental degradation caused or contributed to by transportation facilities.

For more information, contact the House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure.
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The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Energy and Efficiency Programs and Grants

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse regarding a Department of Energy grant or program:
Visit http://www.ig.energy.gov/

Weatherization Assistance Program

Funding Agency: Florida Department of Community Affairs; Division of Housing and Community
Development Federal Funding: $3.1 billion

Description: Assists low-income families reduce their energy costs by sending funds to the
states to weatherize low-income homes. Services include attic, wall and basement insulation,
blower-door-guided air leakage reduction; heating system repairs or replacement; and health
and safety testing and inspections. All measures are provided based on an on-site energy audit
and on cost-effective guidelines. The program has been expanded to include households at or
below 200% of the federal poverty guidelines. The maximum allowed per household has been
increased from $2,500 to $6,500.

How to Apply: Funds will be added to the State’s Weatherization Program.
http://www.floridacommunitydevelopment.org/wap/index.cfm

More information on eligibility can be found at
http://appsl.eere.energy.gov/weatherization/apply.cfm

State Energy Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy to the State of Florida Federal Funding: $3.1 billion

Description: The State Energy Program (SEP) provides grants to states and directs funding to
state energy offices. States use grants to address their energy priorities and program funding to
adopt emerging renewable energy and energy efficiency technologies. This funding will provide
resources for activities in state energy offices, including key initiatives such as residential,
commercial and governmental building energy efficiency retrofits.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed at the State’s discretion.
Biomass from Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $800 million

Description: Invest in new research and build new cellulosic biofuel refineries to test new
technologies, helping to transition the American vehicle fleet to ever cleaner alternatives. How
to Apply: The Department of Energy will disburse this funding through competitive grants and
discretionary spending for biomass research and development. Please check
http://www1.eere.energy.gov/biomass/ for additional information as the Department of
Energy implements this program.
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Federal grants can be found at www.grants.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Energy Efficiency & Conservation Block Grant (EECBG)

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $3.2 billion ($2.8 billion by
formula; $400 million by competitive grant)

Description (competitive grant): The Department of Energy will disburse this funding through
competitive grants to local governments that are not eligible entities for grants through the
formula. This program will assist eligible entities in implementing energy efficiency and
conservation strategies to reduce fossil fuel emissions, to reduce total energy use, and to
improve energy efficiency in the transportation, building and other appropriate sectors.

How to Apply: More information can be found at
http://appsl.eere.energy.gov/wip/block grants.cfm. Please allow 21 days to complete the
registration process.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Advanced Battery Manufacturing grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $2 billion Description: Domestic
manufacturing facilities are eligible for this funding. Loans and grants will support the
development of advanced vehicle batteries and battery systems to reinvigorate the U.S. auto
industry, reduce the U.S. dependence on foreign oil, and transform the way automobiles are
powered. How to Apply: The Department of Energy will disburse this funding through
competitive grants to support the manufacturing of advanced vehicle batteries and
components. Please check http://www.atvmloan.energy.gov / for additional information.
Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Near Term Energy Efficiency Technology Demonstrations and Research

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Defense Federal Funding: $300 million Description: $75
million each will be allocated to Army, Air Force, Navy and Defense Wide for Research,
Development, Test and Evaluation projects, including pilot projects, demonstrations and energy
efficient manufacturing enhancements. Funds are for improvements in energy generation and
efficiency, transmission, regulation, storage, and for use on military installations and within
operational forces. Funding is to include research and development of energy from fuel cells,
wind, solar, and other renewable energy sources to include biofuels and bioenergy. How to
Apply: Pursue a procurement opportunity with the Department of Defense.

http://www.acq.osd.mil/dpap/cpic/cp/docs/guide to dod contracting o
pportunities us 20070425.pdf

Agency Plan: http://www.defenselink.mil/recovery/
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Alternative Fueled Vehicles Pilot Grant Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $300 million

Description: Funds will be distributed by competitive grants for the purchase of alternative fuel
vehicles through the DOE’s Clean Cities program. How to Apply: State and local governments,
metropolitan transportation authorities, air pollution control districts, and appropriate private
entities are eligible to apply to purchase alternatively fueled vehicles that utilize fuel cell,
electric, or hybrid drive system technologies. Please visit www.energy.gov and www.grants.gov
for the announcement following the program’s implementation.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Energy Efficient Appliance Rebate Program and Energy Star Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $300 million

Description: This funding will provide rebates for residential consumers for the purchase of
residential Energy Star products to replace used appliances with more efficient models. How to
Apply: The Department of Energy will administer these rebates through the Energy Star
program. Please visit www.energystar.gov for more information.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Smart Grid Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $4.5 billion

Description: Funding will go toward research and development, pilot projects, and federal
matching funds for the Smart Grid Investment Program to modernize the electricity grid making
it more efficient, secure, and reliable and build new power lines to transmit clean, renewable
energy from sources throughout the nation. The existing transmission system in the United
States requires modernization in light of increasing demand. Smart Grid uses advanced digital
technology to save energy and cost, and to allow demand response, use of storage technologies
(including plug-in hybrid batteries), integration of dispersed renewable and distributed
generators, enhanced reliability and quicker repair of outages, and improved power quality.

How to Apply: There will be pilot programs and 50% matching grants to states provided by the
Department. More information will be available at www.energy.gov and www.grants.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Fossil Energy Research and Development
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $3.4 billion

Description: Coal is an inexpensive and abundant energy resource for the United States,
currently providing more than 50% of the nation’s electricity supply. This funding provides
funding for research, development, and demonstration of carbon sequestration, also known as
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carbon capture projects in order to use coal more cleanly and efficiently How to Apply: Funds
will be awarded competitively in the form of grants and contracts. Please check
www.energy.gov and www.grants.gov for more information as it is announced.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Science Research
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $1.6 billion

Description: Funding will go toward research programs in high-energy physics, nuclear physics,
and fusion energy sciences. It will support improvements to DOE laboratories and scientific
facilities to provide the foundation for research and development efforts. How to Apply: Funds
will be awarded by the Department of Energy. Please check www.energy.gov for more
information. Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery / Advanced Research Projects
Agency-Energy

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $400 million Description: Energy
to support transformational energy technology research projects with the goal of enhancing the
nation’s economic and energy security. The Department of Energy estimates that this amount
of funding will support 50,000 jobs through research and construction of laboratory facilities.

How to Apply: Funds will be awarded by the Department of Energy. Please check
www.energy.gov for more information. Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

Innovative Technology Loan Guarantee Program

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $6 billion Description: This new
loan program would provide loan guarantees for renewable technologies and transmission
technologies.

How to Apply: After implementing this new loan program, more information will be available at
www.energy.gov. Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Environmental Protection Funding and Grants
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Environmental Protection Agency program, visit:

http://www.epa.gov/oig/ombudsman-hotline/how2file.htm

Hazardous Substance Superfund

Funding Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Federal Funding: $600 million
Description: The EPA’s National Priority List will receive funding for cleanup of hazardous sites.
There are several sites in Palm Beach and Broward Counties that are eligible for funding. Find
Florida sites classified as national priorities: http://www.epa.gov/superfund/sites/npl/fl.htm

How to Apply: www.epa.gov/superfund

Agency Plan: http://www.epa.gov/recovery/

Brownfields Projects
Funding Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Federal Funding: $100 million

Description: Funds are provided for Brownfields competitive grants to address environmental
site assessment and cleanup, 25 percent of which are mandated by law to address petroleum
contamination. Funds will capitalize revolving funds and provide low interest loans, job training
grants and technical assistance to local governments and non-profit organizations. How to
Apply: State and local governments, land clearance authorities or other quasi-governmental
entities and non-profit organizations are eligible. Grants will be distributed by federal agency on
a competitive basis.

Visit www.epa.gov or www.grants.gov for more information.

Agency Plan: http://www.epa.gov/recovery/

Clean Water State Revolving Funds

Funding Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Federal Funding: $4 billion Description:
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s CWSRF program awards annual capitalization
grants to states as a long-term source of state financing a) for the construction of publicly
owned wastewater treatment facilities, b) for the implementation of non-point water quality
management activities, and c) for the development and implementation of comprehensive
estuary conservation and management plans.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by formula to the states.

Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
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Funding Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Federal Funding: $2 billion Description:
The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) provides grants, distributed by formula, to
states to capitalize their revolving loan funds which then finance drinking water infrastructure
improvements.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by formula to the states.
Operation of the National Park System

Funding Agency: U.S. National Park Service Federal Funding: $750 million Description: These
funds will be used for operations of the national park system. Eligible projects to be funded
within this account include repair and rehabilitation of facilities and other infrastructure, trail
maintenance projects and other critical infrastructure needs. The National Park Service will
select the individual projects. It will be based on a prioritization process that weighs the
capacity of proposals to create the largest number of jobs and creates lasting value.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed at the National Park Service’s discretion.

Agency Plan: http://www.doi.gov/recovery/plans.html#nps

U.S. Geological Survey Investigations and Research

Funding Agency: United States Geological Survey Federal Funding: $140 million Description: The
surveys should consider a wide variety of activities, including repair, construction and
restoration of facilities, equipment replacement and upgrades, national map activities, and
other critical deferred maintenance and improvement projects.

How to Apply: Discretionary funding will be administered through the United States Geological
Survey. Visit www.usgs.gov for more information.

Agency Plan: http://www.doi.gov/recovery/plans.html#nps
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.doioig.gov/

Diesel Emission Reduction Act (DERA) Grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Federal Funding: $300 million
Description: Provides grants and loans to states, local governments and non-profits for projects
that reduce diesel emission. The program targets geographic areas with high air pollution and
air toxics and areas that receive a disproportionate quantity of air pollution, such as truck stops
and ports. EPA funds technologies to retrofit emission exhaust systems, such as school buses
and other vehicles, replace engines and vehicles, and establish anti-idling programs.

How to Apply: Eligible entities include regional, State, local or port agencies with jurisdiction
over transportation or air quality and nonprofit organizations that represent or provide
pollution reduction or educational services to persons or organizations that operate diesel
fleets. Visit www.grants.gov or www.epa.gov for more information.

Agency Plan: http://www.epa.gov/recovery/
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Transportation and Infrastructure Funding and Grants
Florida Transportation

Funding Agency: Florida Department of Transportation

Federal Funding: $26.6 billion Florida Funding: $1.3 billion Description: These funds will be used
for ready-to-go, quick spending road projects for which contracts can be awarded rapidly. Half
of the funds must be obligated (contracted) within 120 days.

How to Apply: Federal funds will be distributed by formula to the states. Please submit your
projects to the Florida Department of Transportation. More information will be forthcoming
from the State. www.dot.state.fl.us

National Surface Transportation Supplemental Discretionary Grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Funding: $1.5 billion Description: These funds will be used to award grants on a
competitive basis for projects across all surface transportation modes that will have a
significant impact on the Nation, a metropolitan area or a region.

How to Apply: Funds will be awarded through competitive grants from the U.S. DOT. Please visit
www.grants.gov and http://www.dot.gov/citizen services/grants loans/

Agency Plan: http://www.dot.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp

Public Transportation
Funding Agency: U.S. Federal Transit Administration
Federal Funding: $6.9 billion Expected Florida Funding: $310 million

Description: These funds will be administered through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).
80% of the funding will be distributed through the FTA’s urbanized formula, 10% of the funding
will be through FTA’s rural formula, and 10% will be through FTA’s growing states and high-
density formula.

How to Apply: Formula funding through FTA to states and qualifying cities.

Agency Plan: http://www.fta.dot.gov/index 9118.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp
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Transportation Electrification
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Energy Federal Funding: $400 million

Description: This funding is for a transportation electrical system construction program at
transportation facilities, including seaports and truck stops.

How to Apply: The Department of Energy will administer these grants on a competitive basis.
Please visit www.energy.gov and www.grants.gov for the announcement following the
program’s implementation.

Agency Plan: http://www.energy.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.ig.energy.gov/

Fixed Guideway Infrastructure

Federal Agency: U.S. Federal Transit Administration Federal Funding: $750 million Expected
Florida Share: $5,410,766

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed through an existing authorized formula for capital
projects to modernize or improve existing fixed guideway systems, including heavy rail,
commuter rail, light rail, monorail, trolleybus, aerial tramway, cable car or ferryboats,.

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp

Rail Transportation: Intercity and High Speed
Funding Agency: Federal Railroad Administration Federal Funding: $8 billion

Description: Funds will be for the Capital Assistance to States Program and the High Speed
Passenger Rail Program. The Capital Assistance to States Program is open for capital
improvements and planning activities necessary to support improved or new intercity
passenger rail service.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by grants through the U.S. Department of
Transportation/Federal Railroad Administration. Grant information will be available at
www.grants.gov and http://www.fra.dot.gov/us/content/1954.

Agency Plan: http://www.fra.dot.gov/us/content/2153

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp

Federal Aviation Administration

Grants-in-Aid for Airports: $1.1 billion Facilities & Equipment: $200 million Upgrade the FAA’s
power systems: $50 million Modernize aging en route air traffic control centers: $50 million
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Replace air traffic control towers and TRACONS: $80 million Install airport lighting, navigation
and landing equipment: $20 million

How to Apply: www.grants.gov and http://www.faa.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp

Transportation New Starts and Small Starts
Federal Agency: U.S. Federal Transit Administration Capital Investment Grants: $750 million

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed on a discretionary basis for New Starts and Small Starts
projects that are already in construction or are nearly ready to begin construction.

Agency Plan: http://www.fta.dot.gov/index 9261.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

https://www.oig.dot.gov/hotlineform.jsp
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Science and Technology Funding and Grants
Broadband Technology Opportunities

Funding Agency: National Telecommunications and Information Administration, United States
Department of Commerce Federal Funding: $4.7 billion

Description: Funding is provided to award competitive grants to accelerate broadband
deployment in unserved and underserved areas and to strategic institutions that are likely to
create jobs or provide significant public benefits. $200 million shall be used for competitive
grants for expanding public computer center capacity. $250 million shall be for competitive
grants for innovative programs to encourage sustainable broadband adoption. Internet service
providers would be required to provide open access to broadband networks built using the
federal funds.

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit http://www.ntia.doc.gov/
or http://www.ntia.doc.gov/otiahome/top/grants/grants.htm.

Agency Plan: http://www.commerce.gov/Recovery/index.htm

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.oig.doc.gov/oig/

Distance Learning, Telemedicine, and Broadband
Funding Agency: U.S. Rural Utilities Service Federal Funding: $2.5 billion

Description: Funding is available through grants, loans and loan guarantees for broadband
infrastructure throughout the country.

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit www.grants.gov and
http://www.usda.gov/rus

Agency Plan: http://www.usda.gov/documents/FY09 Stimulus Enacted.pdf

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.usda.gov/oig/hotline.htm

Scientific and Technical Research and Services

Funding Agency: U.S. National Institute of Standards and Technology Federal Funding: $780
million

Description: Of that total, $360 million would be for research and development facility
construction grants, and $240 million for research grants, additional research fellowships and
advanced research and measurement equipment and supplies.

Agency Plan: http://www.nist.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.oig.doc.gov/oig/
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Robert Noyce Scholarship Program
Funding Agency: U.S. National Science Foundation Federal Funding: $60 million

Description: The program seeks to encourage talented science, technology, engineering, and
mathematics majors and professionals to become K-12 mathematics and science teachers. The
program provides funds to institutions of higher education to support scholarships, stipends,
and academic programs for undergraduate STEM majors and post-baccalaureate students
holding STEM degrees who commit to teaching in high-need K-12 school districts

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit
http://www.nsf.gov/funding/pgm summ.jsp?pims id=5733 or www.grants.gov

Agency Plan: http://www.nsf.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.nsf.gov/oig/

Math and Science Partnerships
Funding Agency: U.S. National Science Foundation Federal Funding: $25 million

Description: The Math and Science Partnership (MSP) program is a major research and
development effort that supports innovative partnerships to improve K-12 student
achievement in mathematics and science. MSP projects are expected to raise the achievement
levels of all students and significantly reduce achievement gaps in the mathematics and science
performance of diverse student populations.

How to Apply: Institutions of higher education, local K-12 institutions and their local partners
may apply for these competitive, merit-based grants. Grants will be distributed by the federal
agency. Visit: http://www.nsf.gov/funding/pgm summ.jsp?pims id=5756&org=NSF or
WWW.grants.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.nsf.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.nsf.gov/oig/

Weather Satellite and Habitat Restoration Projects

Funding Agency: U.S. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Federal Funding: $830
million

Description: $230 million will be used for habitat restoration, navigation projects, vessel
maintenance, and other activities. An additional $430 million will be dedicated for construction
and repair of NOAA facilities, ships and equipment, improvements for weather forecasting and
satellite development. A total of $170 million will also be directed for climate modeling
activities, including supercomputing procurement and research into climate change.

Agency Plan: http://www.noaanews.noaa.gov/stories2009/20090303 recoveryact.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.oig.doc.gov/oig/
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Education Funding, Grants, and Programs
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Education Program:

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oig/hotline.html

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $53.6 billion Florida Funding:
$2.7 billion

Description: This funding may be used to help avert budget cuts to school districts. Funds may
be used to support elementary and secondary education for fiscal years 2010 and 2011. Up to
18.2% of funds may be used for modernization, renovation, or repair of public school facilities
and institutions of higher education facilities.

How to Apply: School districts will receive these funds through state and federal education
formulas

Agency Plan: http://www.ed.gov/programs/statestabilization/index.html

Disadvantaged Schools

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $13 billion Florida Funding:
$492 million

Description: $10 billion will go toward Title | formula grants and $3 billion toward School
Improvement grants. These funds should be available during school years 2009-2010 and 2010-
2011 to help school districts mitigate the effect of the recent reduction in local revenues and
State support for education. $5 billion of the Title | formula grants will be allocated through the
targeted formula and the same amount should be allocated through the education finance
incentive grant formula. The Department of Education will encourage States to use 40% of their
School improvement allocation for middle and high schools.

How to Apply: School districts will receive these funds through state and federal education
formulas

School Technology and Assistance for Homeless Children

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $720 million Florida Funding:
$33.2 million

Description: $650 million will go toward the Enhancing Education through Technology program
and $70 million for Homeless Children and Youth program. The Secretary of Education will
provide each State a grant that is proportionate to the number of homeless students identified
as such during 2007-2008 academic year relative to the number of homeless children nationally
during the same year. States will award sub-grants to local educational agencies on a
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competitive basis, or using a formula based on the number of homeless students identified in
each school district in the state.

How to Apply: A portion of funds are allocated to states and Local Education Agencies (LEAs),
according to existing formulas, while other funds are awarded through competitive grants. Visit
http://www.ed.gov/programs/edtech/applicant.html or
http://www.ed.gov/programs/edtech/applicant.html or www.grants.gov

Special Education

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $12.2 billion Florida Funding:
$670 million

Description: $11.3 billion will go toward section 611 of part B, $400 million will go toward
section 619 of part B, and $500 million for part C of IDEA. The funds will be available during
school years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 to help school districts mitigate the effect of the recent
reduction in local revenues and State support for special education. Within the amount
provided for part C of IDEA, the Secretary of Education will reserve the amount needed for
grants under section 643 (e), and allocate any remaining funds in accordance with section 643
(c) of IDEA.

How to Apply: School districts will receive these funds through state and federal education
formulas.

Teacher Incentives
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $200 million

Description: All the funding provided is for the Teacher Incentive Fund (TIF) program. This
program supports efforts to develop and implement performance-based teacher and principal
compensation systems in high-need schools. A high-needs school is defined as a school with
more than 30% of its enrollment from low-income families which is based on eligibility for free
or reduced priced lunches or other poverty measures permitted by the state. Local Education
Agencies (LEA), including charter schools that are LEA’s in the State, may apply.

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit
http://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-apply.html?src=rt or
http://www.ed.gov/programs/teacherincentive/index.html

Agency Plan: http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/leg/recovery/index.html

Rehabilitation Services and Disability Research

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $680 million Florida Funding:
$35.5 million

Description: $540 million is available for Vocational Rehabilitation State Grants and $140 million
for Independent Living Programs. Of the funding available for Independent Living Programs,
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$18.2 million will go to State grants, $87.5 million to Independent Living Centers and $34.3
million for Services for Older Blind Individuals.

How to Apply: All registered vocational rehabilitation service providers may apply. For
independent living programs, all non-profit organizations that run centers for independent
living are eligible to apply. To apply for funding for Services for Older Blind Individuals, agencies
serving individuals who are blind may apply. Grants will be distributed by the federal agency.
Visit the following websites:

http://www.ed.gov/programs/rsabvrs/index.html
http://www.ed.gov/programs/cil/index.html
http://www.ed.gov/programs/rsailob/index.html
WWW.grants.gov

Agency Plan: http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/leg/recovery/index.html

Student Financial Assistance

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $15.84 billion Florida Funding:
$1.4 billion

Description: $15.64 billion of the funding will go to Pell Grants and $200 million will be
allocated for College Work-Study. The maximum Pell Grant award will be raised to $5,350.

How to Apply:

Student applicants for a Pell Grant should visit http://www.ed.gov/programs/fpg/index.html or
www.fafsa.ed.gov or http://studentaid.ed.gov or www.students.gov to obtain application and
further information.

Institute of Education Sciences
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Education Federal Funding: $250 million

Description: Up to $5 million may be used for State data coordinator and for awards to public
or private organizations or agencies to improve data coordination.

How to Apply: Institutions of Higher Education may apply. Grants will be distributed by the
federal agency. Visit

http://ies.ed.gov/funding/grantsearch/index.asp

Agency Plan: http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/leg/recovery/index.html
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Health Funding, Grants, and Programs
Community Health Centers

Funding Agency: U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration Federal Funding: $500
million Expected Florida funding: $10.1 million

Description: These funds are to be used to support new sites and service areas, to increase
services at existing sites and to provide supplemental payments for spikes in the uninsured.
Grants for new sites and services are to be two years in length.

How to Apply: This funding is for community health centers.
Grants have been awarded directly to community health centers.
Agency Plan:

http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/hrsa/healthcentergrants.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/hotline/

National Health Service Corps

Funding Agency: U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration Federal Funding:
$300,000,000

Description: To help bring primary care physicians, nurses, dentists, and other healthcare
providers to traditionally underserved areas of the country. Funds are distributed through loan
repayment programs, scholarships, grants, and field operations.

How to Apply: http://nhsc.hrsa.gov/applications/

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/hotline/

Challenge Grants in Health and Science Research
Funding Agency: U.S. National Institutes of Health Federal Funding: $200 million

Description: This new program will support research on Challenge Topics which address specific
scientific and health research challenges in biomedical and behavioral research that will benefit
from significant 2-year jumpstart funds. Challenge Areas, defined by the NIH, focus on specific
knowledge gaps, scientific opportunities, new technologies, data generation, or research
methods that would benefit from an influx of funds to quickly advance the area in significant
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ways. The research in these areas should have a high impact in biomedical or behavioral science
and/or public health.

How to Apply: Applicants can apply electronically through the NIH Website

http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/RFA-OD-09-003.html

Agency Plan: http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/challenge award/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/hotline/

Health Information Technology

Federal Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Federal Funding: $19.2
billion

Description: This bill promotes the use of health information technology, such as electronic
health records, by: requiring the government to take a leadership role to develop standards by
2010 that allow for the nationwide electronic exchange and use of health information to
improve quality and coordination of care; investing $19 billion in health information technology
infrastructure and Medicare and Medicaid incentives to encourage doctors, hospitals, and
other providers to use health IT to electronically exchange patients’ health information; and
strengthening Federal privacy and security law to protect identifiable health information from
misuse as the health care sector increases use of health IT. This is especially important for
Florida’s senior population because their doctors in will specifically help our seniors by allowing
their physicians in South Florida coordinate care with their physicians in their northern
hometown.

How to Apply: Hospitals and physician offices will automatically receive these benefits through
their CMS reimbursements. Other medical agencies and services can apply for competitive
grants through the Department of Health and Human Services to offset the cost of
implementing HIT. To apply go to www.hhs.gov or www.grants.gov

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/programs/index.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/hotline/

Child Care and Development Block Grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services through U.S. Administration
for Children and Families Federal Funding: $2 Billion

Description: The funding will go to the State of Florida to make quality improvements for infant
and toddler care.

How to Apply: For more information, visit:
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http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/childcare/

Community Services Block Grants
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Federal Funding: $1 billion

Description: The Community Service Block Grant (CSBG) is a formula grant that provides funds
to States to assist low-income individuals and families to become self-sufficient. Typically,
States fund these services by making sub-grants to locally based Community Action Agencies
and other eligible entities that provide services to low-income individuals and families. For
more information, see http://www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/ocs/csbg/

How to Apply: This money will be disbursed directly to states. See Florida Association for
Community Action, Inc: www.faca.org

Head Start
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Federal Funding: $1 Billion

Description: Head Start is a comprehensive education, health, and nutrition and
social/emotional development services for low-income children. The Head Start funds will be
allocated according to current statutory formula.

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/programs/index.html

Early Head Start
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Federal Funding: $1.1 billion

Description: Early Head Start (EHS) is a federally funded community-based program for low-
income families with infants and toddlers and pregnant women. Its mission is simple: to
promote healthy prenatal outcomes for pregnant women, to enhance the development of very
young children, and to promote healthy family functioning.

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/programs/index.html
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

Housing and Development Funding and Grants

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Housing and Urban Development
Program, please visit:

http://www.hud.gov/complaints/fraud waste.cfm

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Projects
Federal Funding: $4.6 billion Funding by Army Corps Program:

Investigations: $25 million; Construction: $2 billion; Mississippi: $375 million; Operations and
Maintenance: $2.075 billion; Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program: $100 million

Description: The Corps of Engineers provides construction and operation and maintenance of
the nation’s flood control and navigation infrastructure, as well as the construction
environmental restoration projects. This funding will be used to complete backlogged projects.

http://www.saj.usace.army.mil/

Agency Plan: http://www.usace.army.mil/recovery/Pages/default.aspx

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: 703-428-6572
Neighborhood Stabilization

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Federal Funding: $2
billion

Description: Provides federal funding to counties and cities to address the foreclosure crisis.
The funding will be provided to local governments and states with high levels of foreclosure to
purchase and rehabilitate vacant housing. The intent of the program is to eliminate blight and
return vacant units to use as affordable rental housing and affordable homeownership
opportunities.

How to Apply: The money will distribute through formula to NSP entitlement communities. In
addition, NSP will distribute funds to the State of Florida to distribute to non-entitlement
communities. For a list of eligible communities, please visit:

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/communitydevelopment/programs/neigh borhoodspg/

Economic Development Assistance

Funding Agency: U.S. Economic Development Administration from the U.S. Department of
Commerce

Federal Funding: $150 million
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Description: The program’s funding is first distributed regionally on a formulaic basis based on
high unemployment or low per capita income, and then each region actively seeks competitive
applications. $50 million will be used for economic adjustment assistance to help communities
recover from sudden and severe economic dislocation and massive job losses due to corporate
restructuring. $50 million may be transferred to federally authorized, regional economic
development commissions.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit

http://www.eda.gov/InvestmentsGrants/Investments.xml

Agency Plan: http://www.commerce.gov/Recovery/index.htm

Supplemental Grants to Public Housing Authorities for Capital Needs

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Federal Funding: $4
billion

Description: This funding will provide financial assistance to Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to
implement much-needed capital improvements in public housing.

How to Apply: S3 billion will be administered through the current grant process according to
existing formulas. Of this portion, $85,505,627 will go to entities in Florida. Visit:
http://www.hud.gov/recovery/capitalfund.xls

S1 billion would be administered through a new competitive grant process. The new process
would provide funding to projects that rehabilitate units to improve energy efficiency, that
increase affordable housing projects that are ready-to-go, and address the housing needs of
senior citizens and persons with disabilities. Projects that can award contracts, based on bids,
within 120 days from the date that funds are available to the recipients would be given priority.
Details for the competitive grants will be available at www.HUD.gov or www.grants.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.hud.gov/recovery/phcfund.cfm

Public Assisted Housing Stability and Energy Efficiency

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Federal Funding: $2.25
billion

Description: This funding provides funding for energy-efficient renovations and retrofits of
Section 202, Section 811, and Section 8 units.

How to Apply: Public housing authorities are eligible to apply through a competitive bid
process. A local housing agency can attach up to 20% of its voucher assistance to specific
housing units if the owner agrees to either rehabilitate or construct the units, or the owner
agrees to set-aside a portion of the units in an existing development. For further details and to
apply visit www.grants.gov or www.hud.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.hud.gov/recovery/phcfund.cfm
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Affordable Rental Housing Tax Credit Assistance

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Federal Funding: $2.25
billion Expected Florida Funding: $101,134,952

Description: Funding provides grant funding for capital investment in Low Income Housing Tax
Credit (LIHTC) projects via a formula-based allocation to State housing credit allocation
agencies. The housing credit agencies in each State shall distribute these funds competitively.
This program is expected to stabilize the affordable rental housing market and spur
construction jobs in the hard-hit homebuilding industry. Priority will be given to projects that
are expected to be completed by February 2012.

How to Apply: State and local governments are eligible to apply.

For further details and to apply visit www.grants.gov or www.hud.gov.

Agency Plan: http://www.hud.gov/recovery/tax-credit.cfm

Community Disaster Assistance Direct Loan Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency Federal Funding: S5 million

Description: These loans will apply to calendar year 2008 disasters to exceed $5 million and
equal no more than 50 percent of the operating budget of local governments if that
government has suffered a loss of 25 percent or more in tax revenues.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by the federal agency. This program is available to areas
that have received a disaster declaration at the federal level. Visit
http://www.fema.gov/government/recovery.shtm

Agency Plan: http://www.dhs.gov/xopnbiz/gc 1235067544334.shtm

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.dhs.gov/xoig/about/

Emergency Food and Shelter Program
Funding Agency: Department of Homeland Security Federal Funding: $100 million

Description: The program seeks to meet the needs of hungry and homeless people throughout
the United States and its territories by allocating federal funds for the provision of food and
shelter.

How to Apply: Funds will be given to the following organizations who serve on the national
board of the Program: American Red Cross; Catholic Charities, USA; United Jewish
Communities; The National Council of the Churches of Christ in the U.S.A.; The Salvation Army;
and United Way of America. These organizations will allocate funds to local boards through an
established federal formula based on unemployment, population and poverty data. Individuals
may apply for funds from their local boards. To find out more information, and locate your local
board, visit
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http://www.efsp.unitedway.org/

Agency Plan: http://www.dhs.gov/xopnbiz/gc 1235067544334.shtm

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.dhs.gov/xoig/about/

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG)

Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Federal Funding: $980
million Expected Florida Funding: $42,694,245

Description: Funding enables local governments to undertake a wide range of activities
intended to create suitable living environments, provide decent affordable housing and create
economic opportunities, primarily for persons of low and moderate income. Recipients must
give priority to projects that can award contracts based on bids within 120 days of the grant
agreement.

How to Apply: Eligible applicants include States, units of general local government that received
CDBG Entitlement funding in FY 2008. Based on this formula, the state of Florida and cities in
Florida are expected to receive $42,694,245.

Agency Plan: http://www.hud.gov/recovery/cdblock.cfm

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

http://www.hud.gov/complaints/fraud waste.cfm

Small Business Direct Lending
Funding Agency: U.S. Small Business Administration Federal Funding: $636 million

Description: New direct lending and guarantee authorities under the Small Business
Administration’s (SBA) 504 certified development company (CDC) program, which provides
growing businesses with long-term; fixed-rate financing for major fixed assets, such as land and
buildings.

How to Apply: Competitive grants can be obtained through the Small Business Administration
at www.grants.gov or www.sba.gov The SBA is authorized to guarantee up to 90% of small
business loans originating under the 504 program, and to refinance such loans.

Agency Plan: http://www.sba.gov/recovery/

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.sba.gov/ig/
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

Worker Assistance, Job Training, and Labor Funding and Grants
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Labor program, visit:

http://www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinemain.htm

Dislocated Worker Assistance Emergency Grants
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $200 million

Description: These funds will allow the Secretary of Labor to award national emergency grants
to respond to plant closings, mass layoffs and other worker dislocations.

How to Apply: These funds can be applied for through the Department of Labor as necessary.

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

Youth Build
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $50 million

Description: These funds will allow for expanded services for at-risk youth, who gain education
and occupational credentials while constructing or rehabilitating affordable housing.

How to Apply: These funds will be distributed through competitive grants through the
Department of Labor. Competitive grant information will be available as the Department of
Labor administers the program at www.grants.gov and http://www.doleta.gov/youth services/

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse: http://www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinemain.htm

“Green” and Health Care Worker Training
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $750 million

Description: These funds will be available through competitive grants for worker training and
placement in high growth and emerging industry sectors. Competitive grants will be awarded
for projects that prepare workers for careers in energy efficiency and renewable energy.
Competitive grants will also be available to prepare workers for careers in the health care
sector. These grants are also available to train workers for wireless and broadband deployment.

How to Apply: The Department of Labor will provide additional information. Please check
www.grants.gov and www.dol.gov for more information.

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

Community Service Employment for Older Americans
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Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $120 million

Description: Funding is provided for part-time employment opportunities for low income
seniors

How to Apply: Nonprofit organizations may apply. Current grantees will be provided with the
additional funding. http://www.doleta.gov/seniors/.

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

Job Corps
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $250 million

Description: These funds will support construction and modernization of a network of
residential facilities serving at-risk youth. The funds will allow the Office of Job Corps to move
forward on a number of ready-to-go rehabilitation and construction projects. A portion of the
funds will be available to provide additional training for careers in the energy efficiency,
renewable energy, and environmental protection industries.

How to Apply: Job Corps centers with shovel ready renovations and repairs may contact the
National Office of Job Corps, within the Department of Labor to request funds or check on the
status of existing requests. Visit http://www.jobcorps.gov/contact.aspx

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

Workforce Investment Act Formula Grants
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $3.95 billion

Description: This funding is for formula grants to states for training and employment services.
This money will be divided into services for adults (5500 million), services for youths (S1.2
billion), and services for dislocated workers ($1.25 billion).

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed to the states by formula.

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm

State Unemployment Insurance
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor Federal Funding: $400 million

Description: These funds will be used for reemployment services to connect unemployment
insurance claimants to employment and training opportunities that will facilitate reentry to
employment. The funds provided will be distributed by existing formula.

How to Apply: Unemployed persons should apply to their local unemployment agency

Agency Plan: http://www.dol.gov/recovery/implement.htm
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Public Safety and Homeland Security Funding and Grants
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Justice program, visit:

http://www.usdoj.gov/oig/index.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Homeland Security program, visit:

http://www.dhs.gov/xoig/about/

Violence Against Women Prevention and Prosecution
Funding Agency: U.S. Office on Violence against Women Federal Funding: $225 million

Description: Funding for Violence against Women Prevention and Prosecution Programs will be
available until September 30, 2010. $140 million is for the STOP Violence against Women
Formula Assistance Program. $43 million is for transitional housing assistance grants.

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the federal agency. State and local units of
government, non-profit non-governmental victims’ services programs may apply. Visit
http://www.ovw.usdoj.gov/stop grant desc.htm for STOP Violence Against Women program
and http://www.ovw.usdoj.gov/thousing grant desc.htm for the transitional housing
assistance grants.

Agency Plan: http://www.ovw.usdoj.gov/recovery.htm

Edward Byrne Grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Office of Justice Programs Federal Funding: $225 million for competitive
grants; $2 billion for grants according to formula

Description: Grants to units of State, local, and tribal government, and to national, regional, and
local non-profit organizations to prevent crime, improve the administration of justice, provide
services to victims of crimes, and support critical nurturing and mentoring of at-risk children
and youth. Formula Allocations ($135,119,422 for FL state, cities, towns and counties):

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA/recoveryJAG/recoveryallocations.html

How to Apply (competitively):

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA/recoveryact.html

Agency Plan: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/recovery/

COPS Hiring Grants

Funding Agency: U.S. Community Oriented Policing Services Federal Funding: $1 billion
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Description: State and local governments are eligible to apply for the hiring of additional law
enforcement officers, to be available until September 30, 2010.

How to Apply: Competitive grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit

http://www.cops.usdoj.gov/Default.asp?ltem=2108

Agency Plan: http://www.usdoj.gov/recovery/

Internet Crimes Against Children (ICAC) Task Force Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Office of Justice Programs Federal Funding: $50 million

Description: The funding will help state and local law enforcement agencies develop an
effective response to sexual exploitation and child pornography cases on the internet. This help
encompasses forensic and investigative components, training and technical assistance, victim
services, and community education.

How to Apply: Competitive grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit
https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/ or
http://ojjdp.ncjrs.org/programs/ProgSummary.asp?pi=3#Funding

Agency Plan: http://ojjdp.ncjrs.gov/recoveryact.html

Victims Compensation
Funding Agency: U.S. Office of Justice Programs Federal Funding: $100 million

Description: The funding supports State compensation and assistance programs for victims and
survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, child abuse, drunk driving, homicide and other
Federal and state crimes.

How to Apply: Competitive grants will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit
www.grants.gov or https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/

Agency Plan: http://www.ojp.gov/ovc/fund/Recoveryfunds.html

FEMA State and Local Programs
Funding Agency: U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency Federal Funding: $300 million

Description: $150 million is for the Public Transportation Security Assistance and Railroad
Security Assistance, including Amtrak security and $150 million is for Port Security Grants. The
bill waives the cost-share for

Port Security Grants funded in this Act. Priority will be given to construction projects that
address the most significant risks and can also be completed in a timely fashion.

How to Apply: Funds will be distributed by the federal agency directly to transit agencies.
Eligible agencies will be determined by the Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI). Visit
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http://www.fema.gov/government/grant/psgp/index.shtm#1 for Port Security Grants and
http://www.fema.gov/government/grant/tsgp/index.shtm for Transit Security Grants and
WWW.grants.gov

Agency Plan: http://www.dhs.gov/xopnbiz/gc 1235067544334.shtm

Firefighter Assistance Grants
Funding Agency: U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency Federal Funding: $210 million

Description: Funding is provided for modifying, upgrading or constructing non-Federal fire
stations, not to exceed $15,000,000 per competitive grant.

How to Apply: Local fire departments may apply through the Firefighter Assistance Grants
Program. Funds will be distributed by the federal agency. Visit
http://www.firegrantsupport.com/

Agency Plan: http://www.dhs.gov/xopnbiz/gc 1235067544334.shtm
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Agriculture, Food, and Nutritional Assistance Funding and Programs
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any Department of Agriculture program, visit:

http://www.usda.gov/oig/hotline.htm

Programs for Women and Children
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture Federal Funding: $5 Million

Description: WIC (Women's Infants and Children) Contingency provides Federal grants to States
for supplemental foods, health care referrals, and nutrition education for low-income pregnant,
breastfeeding, and non-breastfeeding postpartum women, and to infants and children up to
age five who are found to be at nutritional risk.

How to Apply: Please contact a local WIC office. In Florida’s 19" District, visit:
http://www.doh.state.fl.us/family/wic/pages/program info/county.htm

You can also call:
Broward County: (954) 767-5110 or (954) 767-5111.

In Palm Beach County:

Delray Beach (561) 274-3112
West Palm Beach (561) 514-5350, Or visit

For more information:

http://www.doh.state.fl.us/family/wic/pages/wic.htm

Temporary Emergency Food Assistance
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture Federal Funding: $150,000,000

Description: TEFAP provides USDA commodities to states, which distribute the food through
local emergency food providers. Available foods vary depending on market conditions. In
Florida, the Recipient Agencies are selected by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer
Services, every four years, as a result of a competitive procurement process or bid. Daily Bread
Food Bank services both Broward and Palm Beach Counties.

To be eligible to receive TEFAP commodities to take home, households must (1) participate in
another government program such as the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP
aka Food Stamps), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), Supplemental Security
Income (SSI), Medicaid, or reside in public housing; or (2) meet established income
requirements.
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How to Apply: Contact Daily Bread Food Bank at (305) 633-9861 or

szuniga@dailybread.org

For More Information:

http://www.florida-agriculture.com/foodprograms/emergency food program.htm

National School Lunch Program
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture Federal Funding: $100 Million

Description: Schools must apply through the Florida Department of Education, Food and
Nutrition Management Division and complete the requirements prior to the operation of these
programs. Once approved, schools will receive funding by the Department of Education for
each lunch and breakfast meal served provided they meet established state and federal
regulations.

How to Apply:

http://www.fldoe.org/FNM/natlschoollunch/promotions.asp For More Information:
http://www.fldoe.org/FNM/natlschoollunch/

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (A.K.A Food Stamps)
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture Florida Funding: $20,910,000

Description: The federal government boosted funding for SNAP by 13.6%. These funds will go
directly to states to supplement their existing SNAP program. The money will be distributed
based on the need of people in their state. The benefits will begin distribution within 60 days of
February 17, 2009.

How to Apply: http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/ess/foodstamps.shtml

For More Information: http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/ess/fsfactsheet.pdf

Home-Delivered Nutrition Services
Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Federal Funding: $32 Million
Description: Delivers nutritious meals to homebound seniors.

How to Apply: States will receive the funding by formula. For more information on the
Administration on Aging’s Nutrition Programs, please see:
http://www.aoa.gov/press/prodsmats/fact/pdf/fs nutrition.doc

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/programs/index.html

Congregate Nutrition Services
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Funding Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services through the Administration on
Aging Federal Funding: $65 Million

Description: Programs that bring seniors together to eat in group settings.

How to Apply: States will receive the funding by formula. For more information on the
Administration on Aging’s Nutrition Programs, please see:
http://www.aoa.gov/press/prodsmats/fact/pdf/fs nutrition.doc

Agency Plan: http://www.hhs.gov/recovery/programs/index.html

To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse:

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/hotline/
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

Arts and Humanities Projects and Funding
To Report Waste, Fraud or Abuse for any National Endowment for the Arts programs, visit:

http://www.nea.gov/about/0OIG/Contents.html

Funding Agency: U.S. National Endowment for the Arts Federal Funding: S50 million

Description: Competitive grant funding will be distributed in direct grants to fund arts projects
and activities which preserve jobs in the non-profit arts sector threatened by declines in
philanthropic and other support during the current economic downturn. 40 percent of funds
will be distributed to State arts agencies and regional arts organizations in a manner similar to
the agency’s current process. 60 percent will be awarded through competitive direct grants.
The new program will fund projects that focus on the preservation of jobs in the arts. Funded
projects must address two areas: salary support and contractual fees.

How to Apply: Grants will be distributed by the State of Florida’s Division of Cultural Affairs
http://www.florida-arts.org/ and by the federal agency
http://www.nea.gov/grants/apply/index.html

Agency Plan: http://www.nea.gov/recovery/
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